
   

  
 

3800 Laverne Avenue North 
Lake Elmo, MN 55042 

(651) 747-3900 
www.lakeelmo.org 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING  
 

The City of Lake Elmo 
Planning Commission will conduct a meeting on   

Monday, February 25, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Approve Agenda 

3. Approve Minutes 

a. February 11, 2013 

4. Public Hearing 

a. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT – LDR MINIMUM DISTRCIT STANDARDS. 
The Planning Commission will consider amendments to the Urban Low Density 
Residential Zoning District that include the reduction of the minimum lot width 
from 70’ to 60’, and changing the side-yard setback requirements for the district. 

b. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – VILLAGE LAND USE PLAN. 
The Planning Commission will consider a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to 
update the Land Use Plan for the Village Area.  The Village Land Use Plan 
includes 4 sewered land use categories, including Low, Medium and High 
Density Residential, as well as a Village Mixed-Use category. The plan also 
includes the designation of open space areas in the Village.  Updating the Village 
Land Use Plan is a critical step in extending sanitary sewer to the Village and 
preparing the area for future sewered growth. 

5. Updates 

a. City Council Updates 
i. PUD Ordinance approved at the 2/19/13 City Council meeting. 

b. Staff Updates 
i. Upcoming Meetings: 

1. Planning Commission Meeting, 3/11/13 
a. Tree Preservation Ordinance 
b. Rural Districts Code Update 

c. Commission Concerns                      

6. Adjourn 



Lake Elmo Planning Commission Minutes; 2‐11‐13 
 

 
City of Lake Elmo 

Planning Commission Meeting 
Minutes of February 11, 2013 

 
Chairman Williams called to order the meeting of the Lake Elmo Planning Commission at 
7:05pm   
 
COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Larson, Kreimer, Reeves, Morreale, Haggard and Williams; 
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Obermueller, Fliflet and Hall; and   
STAFF PRESENT: Planning Director Klatt and City Planner Johnson 
 
Approve Agenda: 
 
The agenda was accepted as presented. 
   
Approve Minutes: January 14, 2013 
 
Williams asked for a correction to the discussion concerning parliamentary procedure. 
 
M/S/P; Williams/Reeves to accept the minutes of January 14, 2013 as amended; Vote: 
5‐0, with Haggard not voting. 
 
Business Item: Zoning Text Amendment ‐ PUD Ordinance 
 
City Planner Johnson reviewed proposed amendments to the Planned Unit 
Development Ordinance with the Planning Commission, and noted that the Commission 
had postponed taking action on this matter at its last meeting.  He reviewed the 
changes that have been made to the document since the last meeting, which included 
editorial changes and corrections, further clarification concerning residential density 
bonuses, allowances for a range approach to awarding amenity points for two site 
amenities, changes and corrections to the standards of site amenities, and adding on 
site amenity description for sprinkler systems. 
 
Johnson stated that Staff is recommending approval of the proposed PUD ordinance as 
amended. 
 
Williams asked how the sprinkling amenity would be addressed in cases where only a 
small portion of the buildings would meet this criterion.  It was suggested that a 
minimum percentage be established within a development in order to award this bonus. 
 



2 
 

Lake Elmo Planning Commission Minutes; 2‐11‐13 

Reeves stated that a range might be appropriate for additional amenities beyond those 
currently drafted with a range of values.  He noted this was especially true for those 
measurements that were more subjective. 
 
Williams expressed concern that there is no quantifiable measurement for determining 
the amount of underground or structured parking that could achieve an amenity bonus.  
He suggested tying a percentage of surface parking reductions to the bonus calculation. 
 
There was a general discussion concerning the application of the bonus system and how 
much detail should be incorporated into the document. 
 
The Commission reviewed the draft document and the specific elements of the 
ordinance. 
 
Kreimer asked why there was flexibility allowed under the open space provisions.  
Johnson replied that this provision would likely apply more to redevelopment situations 
in which it might not be possible to provide additional open space on developed sites. 
 
Williams suggested that the underground parking requirement include a qualifier that 
would grant a larger bonus for reducing a larger number of surface parking stalls. He 
suggested that reducing surface parking by 25% be worth 5 amenity points, and 
reducing by 50% and above be worth 10 amenity points. Johnson recommended that a 
separate amenity be added for contained parking hidden from the view of the public 
right‐of‐way. 
 
There was a general discussion concerning the meaning of landscaped outdoor open 
space under the open space bonus section.  Klatt noted that the City Code generally 
defines landscaped areas as those portions of a site that are not hard‐surfaced. 
 
Larson asked if the open space provision would allow for unique uses that might serve a 
public benefit.   Johnson indicted that an earlier section of the PUD ordinance provides a 
more through description of open space. 
 
Larson asked if the PUD ordinance could incorporate additional density bonuses to 
encourage developers to provide additional pedestrian crossings of Highway 5 and other 
major roadways.  The Commission suggested that the Village Comprehensive Plan 
amendment should include a discussion of pedestrian crossings and include some 
incentives for private developers to include these amenities as a part of their project. 
 
The Commission directed Staff to incorporate a general statement that allows the City 
to consider other amenities not listed, which could include roadway or pedestrian 
improvements, as a potential density bonus. 
 



3 
 

Lake Elmo Planning Commission Minutes; 2‐11‐13 

Reeves suggested that the bonus for sprinkling buildings be limited to only those 
buildings in a PUD that would not otherwise require a fire sprinkling system.  It was 
noted that all eligible buildings must be sprinkled in order to achieve the bonus. 
 
Williams asked that the ordinance include a definition of plaza if it is not already defined 
in the City Code. 
 
Haggard questioned how theming would be incorporated into private developments, 
and whether or not this theming was going to be a requirement for developers.  
Johnson noted that the theming project was not likely going to include specific 
requirements for developers, and would instead be presented as guidance for amenities 
of Theming elements to be incorporated into new developments. 
 
Larson questioned if the City was in any way promoting alternative energy and if there 
was a way to reward developers for the use of renewable energy sources.  Johnson 
replied that such improvements could be incentivized through density bonus, but have 
not been specifically called out in the proposed ordinance.  Reeves noted that the 
renewable energy may be covered under the LEED certification bonus. 
 
The Commission recommended that Development Review Committee be defined in the 
City Code. 
 
Klatt recommended that the language with specific times limited for review and 
approval be removed from the ordinance.  He noted that other portions of Zoning 
Ordinance address time requirements for review. 
 
Kreimer asked how performance would be guaranteed for those elements of the plan 
that might be part of a phased plan in particular.  Johnson indicated that an existing 
section of the ordinance already requires a performance guarantee.  Klatt noted that 
this section could also be amended to require an agreement between the City and the 
developer. 
 
There was a general discussion concerning the potential for additional bonuses if several 
of the objectives listed in the code are met by a developer.  The Commission did not 
elect to incorporate any additional bonuses. 
 
M/S/P: Larson/Haggard, move to recommend approval of the PUD ordinance as 
amended by the Planning Commission; Vote: 6‐0. 
 
Business Item: 2012 Community Development Department Annual Report 
 
Klatt presented an overview of the Community Development Department’s Annual 
Report.  He highlighted a list of major projects undertaken over the course of the year.  
Overall, there were less land use applications for individual properties this year.  



4 
 

Lake Elmo Planning Commission Minutes; 2‐11‐13 

However, there were more significant projects related to Comprehensive planning and 
other city‐wide projects than other years.  Klatt then presented some statistical 
information pertaining to planning and building activity in 2012. 
 
Reeves asked if the annual report is typically tied to the department’s work plan. Klatt 
noted that in other years, Staff has done a review of the previous year’s work plan.  He 
noted that Staff can share the work plan to act as a benchmark for the year’s activities. 
 
M/S/P: Kreimer/Reeves, move to accept the annual report as presented and forward 
the report to the City Council; Vote: 6‐0.  
 
Business Item: Planning Commission Work Plan for 2013 
 
Klatt noted that the work plan is broken into 3 sections: zoning initiatives, planning 
initiatives and administrative initiatives.  He also noted that the City has adopted a City‐
wide Work Plan.  The department’s work plan is not intended to supersede the City’s 
overall work plan, but further narrow down the plan of work related to planning.  Klatt 
also noted that each item in the work plan it given a date or completion goal, as well as 
a priority level. 
 
Klatt gave a general overview of the zoning initiatives related to the Zoning Code 
planned for 2013.  They include but are not limited to the following: 

• Zoning map changes necessary to implement the Comp Plan Amendments. 
• Rural Zoning Districts 
• Village Mixed Use District 
• Tree Preservation Ordinance 
• Performance Standards 

 
Other zoning initiatives of high priority include the design standards manual, 
engineering standards, subdivision ordinance, and form‐based code. 
 
Klatt moved forward to provide an overview of planning initiatives for 2013.  These 
include the adoption of the I‐94 Corridor and Village Comp Plan Amendments as the 
highest priority items.  Other planning initiatives include the theming project, parks and 
trails planning, and other projects. 
 
Haggard asked if we would need to amend the Comp Plans if we received quantitative 
easing from the required REC units in the MOU with the Met Council.  Klatt noted that 
an amendment would be necessary. 
 
Kreimer asked if there are ordinances currently in place that provide some standards for 
the development that is staged to occur sooner rather than later.  Klatt explained the 
City does have existing standards for most of the proposed ordinances in the Work Plan.  
Upcoming updates should be viewed as improvement to the existing ordinances. 



5 
 

Lake Elmo Planning Commission Minutes; 2‐11‐13 

 
Reeves thanked Klatt for the Work Plan and suggested that the Planning Commission 
receive periodic updates.  The Planning Commission suggested biannual updates of 
work completed as compared with the Work Plan.  Klatt noted that the Staff will provide 
verbal updates as appropriate. 
 
Williams asked about the Adequate Public Facilities Ordinance.  Klatt explained that this 
ordinance is intended to support the City Staging Plan for utility and infrastructure 
extension. 
 
Williams asked about the initiative pertaining to developing a policy for consideration of 
requests to expand activities in proposed sewer service areas before sanitary sewer is 
available.  Klatt explained the purpose of the policy. 
 
Williams asked about the Washington County septic permitting.  Klatt explained that 
Washington County is the permitting authority for this activity. 
 
Updates and Concerns  
 
City Council approved the Christ Lutheran Church Variance and VBWD CUP for the 
removal of the culvert located at Raleigh Creek at the Council meeting on 2/5/13. 
 
Staff updates include upcoming public hearings for a zoning text amendment to the LDR 
zoning district and the Village Comp Plan Amendment. 
 
Staff also highlighted two training opportunities for the Planning Commission provided 
by the American Planning Association (APA). 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:20pm  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Nick Johnson 
Planner 



 
 
 
        Planning Commission 
        Date: 2/25/13 
        Business Item 
        Item:  4a 
         
 
 
ITEM:  PUBLIC HEARING:  Consideration of Amendments to Article 10 of the 

Zoning Ordinance – Urban Residential Districts 
 
REQUESTED BY:  Planning Department 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Kyle Klatt, Planning Director 
 
REVIEWED BY:  Nick Johnson, City Planner 
 
 

 SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:  

The Planning Commission is being asked to consider text amendments to the recently adopted 
Zoning Ordinance update for urban residential districts. Specifically, Staff is recommending that 
certain provisions pertaining to lot dimension and setback requirements as listed in Table 10-2 in 
Section 154.452 be revised as follows: 

• Reducing the minimum lot width required for single family homes in LDR (Low Density 
Residential) districts from 70 feet to 60 feet. 

• Reducing the minimum lot width required for single family homes in MDR (Medium 
Density Residential) districts from 60 feet to 50 feet. 

• Amending the required interior side yard setbacks from 8 feet to 10 feet for principal 
buildings and 5 feet for attached garages and accessory buildings. 

• Adding a new notation for side yard setbacks to specify that any building that is setback 
less than 7 feet from a side lot line may not have encroachments that extend any more 
than two feet into the required setback. 

The proposed amendments have been drafted primarily to provide for additional flexibility in the 
City’s urban residential districts and to make smaller, narrower lots a more viable option for 
potential builders.  As new development concepts are being considered for planned residential 
areas, Staff is continuing to encourage developers to cluster housing as much as possible in 
order to incorporate larger open space into these developments. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

In preparation for the amendments that are being proposed, Staff reviewed several other zoning 
ordinances from developing communities and found that many have gone to narrower side yard 
setbacks or are following the standards being recommended by Staff for garages and principal 
structures.  The attached ordinance represents a small subsection of Article 10 from the Zoning 
Ordinance, and only those pages with revisions are attached.  Staff is able to provide a copy of 
the entire residential zoning regulations to Planning Commissioners upon request.   

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed 
amendments to Article 10 – Urban Residential Districts as presented. 

 



 2

ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

- Introduction ........................................................................ Kyle Klatt, Planning Director 
- Report by staff .................................................................... Kyle Klatt, Planning Director 

- Questions from the Commission ....................................Chair & Commission Members 

- Open the Public Hearing ........................................................................................ Chair 

- Close the Public Hearing ....................................................................................... Chair 

- Call for a motion .................................................................................... Chair Facilitates 

- Discussion of Commission on the motion ............................................. Chair Facilitates 

- Action by the Planning Commission ..............................Chair & Commission Members 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS (1):  

1. Draft Article 10 – Urban Residential District Amendments 



 

February 25, 2013 - Revisions 10-4 Urban Residential Districts 

§154.452 Lot dimensions and building bulk requirements. 

 Lot area and setback requirements shall be as specified in Table 10-2, Lot Dimension and Setback 
Requirements. 

Table 10-2:  Lot Dimension and Setback Requirements, Residential Districts 

 LDR MDR HDR 

Minimum Lot Area (sq. ft.)     

Single Family Detached Dwelling 8,000 7,000 5,000 

Two-Family Dwelling (per unit) a 5,000 4,000 3,000 

Single-Family Attached (per unit) b - 4,000 2,500 

Multi-Family Dwelling (per unit) - 4,000 1,800 

Secondary Dwelling  see 155.102  

Live-Work Unit - - 3,600 

Congregate Housing - see 155.102 see 155.102 

Manufactured Home Park  - see 155.102 - 

    

Minimum Lot Width (feet)    

Single Family Detached Dwelling 7060 6050 50 

Two-Family Dwelling (per unit) a 35 30 20 

Single-Family Attached (per unit)b - 25 20 

Multi-Family Dwelling (per building) - 75 60 

Live-Work Unit - - 25 

    

Maximum Height (feet) 35 35 50 

    

Maximum Impervious Coverage 40% 50% 75% 

    

Minimum Building Setbacks (feet)    

Front Yard 25c 25c 20c 

Interior Side Yard e 8 8 10 d 

Principal Buildings f,g 10 10 10 d 

Attached Garage or Accessory Structures f,g 5 5 10 d 

Corner Side Yard e fg,h 15 15 15 

Rear Yard 20 20 20 

 



 

February 25, 2013 - Revisions 10-5 Urban Residential Districts 

Notes to Urban Residential Districts Table 

a. Common open space areas may be used in the determining whether or not the minimum lot 
areas within a development are met, when provided as part of an overall development plan. 

b. Two-family units may be side-by-side with a party wall between them (“twin”) or located on 
separate floors in a building on a single lot (“duplex”). The per-unit measurements in this table 
apply to “twin” units, whether on a single lot or separate lots.  The standards for single-family 
detached dwelling shall apply to a “duplex” containing two vertically-separated units on a 
single lot. 

c. In the case of single-family attached dwellings that are not situated on individual lots, 
minimum lot size shall be applied to each unit as a measure of density; i.e. 1 unit per 2,500 
square feet.  This standard is also used for multifamily dwellings. 

d. Single Family Dwellings (both attached and detached) and Two-Family Dwellings may use the 
side yard setbacks within MDR zoning districts. 

e. In a block where the majority of the block face has been developed with the same or similar 
setbacks, the front setback for the remaining lots on that block face shall fall within the range 
established by the existing setbacks. 

e.f. In situations where a garage or accessory building is set back less than 7 feet from a side 
property line, the maximum permitted encroachment for anything attached to said building 
(including eaves, overhangs, steps, chimneys, and other appurtenances as described in Section 
154.081) will be two (2) feet. 

f.g. Side yards setbacks shall apply to the ends of attached or two-family dwellings. 

g.h. Corner properties: The side façade of a corner building adjoining a public street shall maintain 
the front setback of the adjacent property fronting upon the same public street, or the 
required front yard setback, whichever is less.  If no structure exists on the adjacent property, 
the setback shall be as shown in the table. 

§154.453 Dimensional Requirements and Preservation of Open Space 

A. Averaging of Lot Area.  When lots are clustered within a development to provide common open 
space, the open space may be used to calculate an average density per lot to determine 
compliance with the individual lot area requirements. 

B. Lot Dimension Reductions.  Other reductions in dimensional standards may be considered as 
part of a Planned Unit Development if these reductions provide for common open space within 
a development. 

C. Lots Adjacent to Public Greenway Corridors.  On any lot that abuts a public greenway as 
depicted in the Comprehensive Plan the minimum setback for all structures, including 
accessory buildings, shall be the required rear yard setback for the district in which said 
structure is located. 

§154.454 Site Design and Development Standards. 

 Development of land within the urban residential districts shall follow established standards for traffic 
circulation, landscape design, parking, signs and other considerations as specified in Articles 5, 6 and 
7.  The following standards apply to specific uses, and are organized by district. 



PUBLIC HEARING ITEM 4b – ACTION ITEM 
 

 
 

Planning Commission 
Date: 2/25/13 
Item:  4b 
Public Hearing Item 

 
ITEM: Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Village Land Use Plan 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nick Johnson, City Planner 
 
REVIEWED BY: Kyle Klatt, Planning Director 
   Dean Zuleger, City Administrator 
______________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED:    
The Planning Commission is asked to review a proposed Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment aimed at updating the Village Land Use Plan.  The purpose of the Land Use 
Plan is to prepare the Village Area for sewered residential growth of varying densities, as 
well as provide for a mixed-use land use category for the area identified as the Village 
Center, or downtown.  In addition, the Village Land Use Plan also addresses other 
important elements of implementation, including transportation, parks and trails, open 
space, and the provision of public utilities, among others.  The Village Land Use Plan is 
the result of a significant planning process spearheaded by the Village Work Group 
(VWG) in collaboration with the Staff and members of the public. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
As part of efforts to update the Land Use Plans for the I-94 Corridor and Village Area, 
the City Council established work groups intended to act in an advisory capacity in the 
formulation of land use updates to these areas.   The Village Work Group was formed in 
May of 2011, consisting of two City Council members, three Planning Commissioners, 
and one at-large member.  This group was the main advisory body for ongoing planning 
efforts in the Village.  In terms of public engagement, the City hosted two significant 
public meetings (3/29/12 & 9/20/12) to present ideas and plans related to the ongoing 
efforts surrounding the Village Land Use Plan.  These engagement efforts produced 
significant feedback and were extremely helpful in providing direction for the VWG and 
Staff.   In addition, ongoing updates to the community have been provided through the 
City’s quarterly newsletter and website. 

It should also be noted that the current Village planning efforts have been built upon 
significant amounts of previous work and investigation conducted by a wide range of 
residents and professionals, representing a grass-roots planning effort.  The Village has 
been the subject of numerous studies and design documents.  Perhaps most important, the 
Village Master Plan, completed in 2007 by Engstrom and Close Architects, remains a 
foundational document in terms of informing the proposed Village Land Use Plan.  From 



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 4b – ACTION ITEM 
 

the guiding principles to the open space included in the plan, the Village Master Plan 
remains a key document in the evolution of the Village Land Use Plan. 

STAFF REPORT: 
Many different elements are incorporated into the Village Land Use Plan. As opposed to 
going into significant detail, the Staff Report will only provide an overview of that is 
contained in the Comprehensive Plan Amendment.  The Village Land Use Plan is 
organized into 5 main sections: 

1. Introduction 

2. Village Planning Area Objectives and Goals 

3. Village Land Use Plan 

4. Phasing Plan 

5. Implementation  

When reading the document, it is the goal of the Staff to effectively communicate the 
existing context of the area, the vision for the Village Land Use Plan, and the multiple 
tools and strategies needed for implementation. 

Regarding the Village Land Use Plan (Map 3-5), the plan includes four sewered land use 
categories that allow for residential development.  The following categories allow for 
various ranges of residential density:  

• LDR – Urban Low Density Residential: 1.5 to 2.5 units per acre 

• MDR – Urban Medium Density Residential: 3.0 to 4.0 units per acre 

• HDR – Urban High Density Residential: 8.0 to 15.0 units per acre 

• VMX – Village Mixed Use: 6.0 to 10.0 units per acre 

The Village Land Use Plan (Map 3-5) is designed to accommodate a range of 900 to 
1,100 new sewered housing units in the Village.  In addition, there is some minimal 
amount of land located at Manning Ave. and State Highway 5 guided for commercial 
activity. The remaining areas of the Village are guided the same as their previous rural 
land use categories (Rural Area Development (RAD) or Rural Single Family (RS)).  The 
plan also includes areas guided for three types of open space.  The open space types and 
locations are described in the Village Open Space Plan (Map 3-6). 

Regarding the other elements and amenities contained with the Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment, Staff has outlined how the proposed land uses interact with transportation, 
parks and trails, public utilities and other important features that will make development 
in the Village a success.  In addition, Staff provides an overview into the mechanisms of 
implementation that will be included in the Village, including zoning, design standards, a 
form-based code and other tools.  It is the goal of the Staff to include all of these 
amenities and elements of implementation in a comprehensive way so that the vision is 
effectively communicated to land owners and the development community. 

Regarding process and organization, this Comprehensive Plan Amendment qualifies as a 
major amendment.  In other words, the Amendment must be reviewed by adjacent 



3 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 4b – ACTION ITEM 
 

communities in addition to the Metropolitan Council to meet final approval.  If the 
process goes smoothly, the City should have the ability to adopt the Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment sometime in late summer of 2013.  In terms of how the Village Land Use 
Plan will be incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan if adopted, Staff will work to 
integrate the new land uses in the Village into the overall Planned Land Use Map for the 
City of Lake Elmo, as well as integrate the Village Land Use Plan directly into Chapter 
III of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  In addition, Staff will have to update the Existing 
and Planned Land Use Table to report to the Metropolitan Council on the various 
acreages associated with each land use category in the City.  Staff has drafted the Village 
Land Use Plan in way that should allow for smooth incorporation of the plan into Chapter 
III of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  

RECCOMENDATION: 
Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the 
proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment-Village Land Use Plan through the following 
motion: 

 

“Move to recommend approval of the proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 
Village Land Use Plan.” 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   
1. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Village Land Use Plan 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS: 
- Introduction ...................................................................................Planning Staff 

- Report by Staff ..............................................................................Planning Staff 

- Questions from the Commission ....................... Chair & Commission Members 

- Open the Public Hearing ............................................................................. Chair 

- Close the Public Hearing ............................................................................ Chair 

- Discussion by the Commission ......................... Chair & Commission Members 

- Action by the Commission................................ Chair & Commission Members 



Village Planning Area – Comprehensive Plan Amendment   

 

Introduction 

The approximately 1,300 acres that comprises the Village Planning Area as defined on the Village Land 
Use Map, Map 3‐5, has been the subject of numerous studies and planning efforts extending back for 
several decades.  The Village Area serves as the heart of the community and provides a direct 
connection to the City’s past with its historic buildings and small‐town character.  As part of the Lake 
Elmo’s most recent Comprehensive Plan update in 2005, the City decided to accommodate a portion of 
future sewered development within the Village Planning Area with the direct intent of building upon the 
existing character of the Village while preserving those aspects that make it unique. 

This section of the Lake Elmo Land Use Plan includes an updated land use plan for the Village Planning 
Area and has been prepared with the specific intent of building off of previous planning efforts for this 
area, including the City’s 2005 Comprehensive Plan update and the Village Master Plan completed in 
2007.  This revised plan generally recognizes the adopted goals and objectives from these previous 
planning efforts while updating some of the specific land use elements to conform to the broader Land 
Use plans for the City. 

The decision to extend public sanitary sewer services into the Village Planning Area and to plan for new 
development within this planning area has been based on a number of factors, including the following: 

• The desire to maintain the Village Planning Area as the core of the city by accommodating a 
portion of new development set to occur outside of the rural development areas. 

• The ability to locate new and expanded public services and facilities in a central location. 

• The need to extend public services, and specifically public sanitary sewer, to existing users 
within the Village Area that are presently using older and non‐compliant septic treatment 
systems. 

• The potential to take advantage of redevelopment and renovation activities within the existing 
core of the Village and to encourage new development that builds off of the existing character 
of the Village. 

• The need to address existing traffic congestion and safety problems along the main roadway 
corridors that transect the Village Planning Area. 

• The opportunity to preserve open space around the Village Planning Area to clearly delineate 
the edge of the Village and preserve the sense of place that presently exists. 

• The desire to accommodate some of the expected future urban growth outside of the I‐94 
Corridor closer to the historic center of the community. 

History of the Village 

Lake Elmo has a long history as one of the oldest settled areas in Minnesota, beginning with its platting 
by the railroad company in 1878 in the approximate location of the present Village.  The namesake lake 
served as a focal point for much of the early development, which included a large hotel that was erected 
on the north side of the lake in the 1880’s and a 330‐acre residential development called Elmo 
Residential Park that was platted to the north and east of the lake (which was never fully developed as 
planned). 



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

After incorporation as a Village in 1925, the city continued to develop as a rural center providing goods 
and services to the surrounding agricultural lands in Washington County.  Lake Elmo later flourish as a 
center for farmers throughout the middle part of the 20th Century.  It also became a popular destination 
for summer villas and cottages, attracting residents from the larger Minneapolis and St. Paul region as a 
picnic and excursion area. 

As a result of this varied history, one can find examples of wide variety of architectural eras within the 
Village Planning Area, including buildings that were built from the late 19th Century through the post 
World War II time period.  New subdivisions began appearing in the post war era, and these housing 
developments began to shift the focus of community life from farming to housing for commuters.  This 
general transformation continued as the cabins and summer homes north of Lake Elmo were converted 
into permanent homes. 

While the City has undergone significant changes over the course of its history, many of the buildings 
located in the Village Planning Area still retain their 19th Century settlement character.  An excellent 
example of this character is the historic farmstead built by William S. Moscrip, who in 1921 was selected 
as Minnesota’s best farmer.  The farmstead is currently located on land owned by the Peter Schiltgen 
family.  Moscrip’s North Star Farm, known for its Holstein cows, still stands essentially as it did nearly 
100 years ago and continues to serve as an exemplary gateway into the Village Planning Area. 

Physical Context 

Located 15 miles east of downtown Saint Paul, Lake Elmo has been successful at retaining its rural 
character even with its close proximity to the Twin Cities metropolitan area.  Like traditional mid‐
western towns, the edges of the Old Village are clearly defined; one can literally walk into a cornfield 
from the outfield of the local ball diamond (a real‐life example from Field of Dreams), which represents 
a unique environment within the suburban metropolitan area.  The Village Planning Area includes a 
small historic Main Street that contains several lovely buildings arranged at an intimate scale that is 
bisected by an active rail line. 

State Highway 5, also known as Stillwater Boulevard, runs east‐west through the community and leads 
to Stillwater to the east and Minneapolis/St. Paul to the west.  The highway was designed as a rural 
section, with ditches, culverts and large setbacks to buildings.  Approximately 12,000 cars traverse the 
road a day, with most of this traffic occurring during the morning and evening rush hours.  The City has 
expressed interest in having the roadway turned over from the State to the County in the past.  There 
are no signalized or controlled intersections on Highway 5 in the Old Village, which makes this route 
attractive to commuters interested in bypassing busier roadways.  With its significant traffic levels, 
Highway 5 divides the Village Planning Area as crossing this road can be dangerous for both vehicles and 
pedestrians. 

County Road 17, Lake Elmo Avenue, runs north and south through the heart of the Village (it is the 
historic Main Street), and provides a direct connection between Highway 36 to the north and the 1‐94 
frontage road to the south. The road jogs about a block to the east as a quarter‐mile section of Highway 
5, which is both confusing and dangerous for motorists. 

County Road 15, Manning Trail, runs north to south on the east side of the Old Village, connecting 
Stillwater Boulevard to I‐94. This is a preferred route for many commuters and will eventually be 
upgraded to a four‐lane section by Washington County. 

Two significant lakes and associated parks contribute to the quality of life in the Village. These lakes and 
parks include Lake Elmo and the Lake Elmo Regional Park Reserve located on the southwest side of the 
community, the 30‐acre Reid Park on the south side of the Village, the smaller Lions and VFW parks in 

  2



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

the middle of the City, and Sunfish Lake and Sunfish Lake Park are to the west, all of which represent 
beautiful amenities for community residents and visitors.  

The Lake Elmo Regional Airport is located immediately across Manning Trail in Baytown Township. 
Primarily a recreational facility, the airport safety zones associated with the airport extend into the 
Village Planning Area and will need to be considered as development occurs along the eastern boundary 
of the Village area.  The City will work the Metropolitan Airports Commission to develop appropriate 
multi‐jurisdictional zoning to help plan for future residential development in this area. 

A number of new developments lie on the outskirts of the Old Village.  In most of these developments 
the City’s OP – Open Space Preservation zoning designation has guided site design so that major 
portions of the these subdivisions are retained as open space.  Existing and proposed trails are planned 
to connect to several of these neighborhoods. 

Finally, it should be noted that some other challenges exist related to the physical context of the Village.  
These challenges include the following: 

‐ There is a significant natural gas‐line easement running from north to south on the 
eastern portion of the Village. 

‐ The area east of downtown Lake Elmo in the Village has experienced some groundwater 
contamination.  Development within this site should be aware of the contamination. 

‐ The location of the Christ Cemetery along State Highway 5 may present some 
challenges related to buffering for residential development adjacent to this facility. 

Previous Planning Efforts 

The City last updated its Land Use Plan in 2005 to reflect the extension of public sanitary sewer services 
into the Village and the City’s plan to accommodate a portion of the required REC units within the 
Village Planning Area.  Prior to the preparation of the 2005 plan, the City undertook numerous planning 
initiatives to analyze land use within the Village, which in the recent past has included the following 
studies: 

• The 1996 Minnesota Design Team Report 

• The 1999 Thornbeck Architects Old Village Urban Design Study 

• The 2000 Calthorpe Design Study 

• The 2002 Thornbeck and Associates design work 

• The 2003 TKDA Water Supply, Traffic, and Surface Water Reports 

These efforts demonstrate the comprehensive approach that has taken with planning in the Village.  In 
addition, many of the planning efforts were spearheaded by countless volunteer hours of many Lake 
Elmo residents, representing a grass‐roots approach.  Throughout all of these studies, as well as the 
studies that preceded them, several common themes have emerged.  These themes have helped shape 
the goals and objectives for the Village Planning Area that are reflected in this plan.  After adoption of 
the 2005 Comprehensive Plan, the City decided to prepare an overall master plan for the Village 
Planning Area as part of a larger and more focused land use study in this area. 

Village Master Plan and Village AUAR 

In the summer of 2005, the City of Lake Elmo retained a team led by Robert Engstrom Companies to 
prepare a Master Plan to guide anticipated development within the Village Planning Area.  This study 

  3



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

focused on techniques that could be used by the City to help preserve the character of the Village while 
accommodating the growth and development anticipated under the updated Comprehensive Plan.  This 
plan further acknowledges the pressures that the City will face once sanitary sewer services were 
extended into the Village, and further establishes policies intended to minimize any negative impacts to 
the unique charm and scale of the area.   

The design team, which included Jerry Mazzara of Design Forum and Bob Close and Bruce Jacobson of 
Close Landscape Architecture, was charged with two areas of focus: 1) to prepare a physical plan with 
associated guidelines, and 2) to provide a strategy for allocating development units throughout the 
planning area.  The intent of this approach was to present a guide for development that would allow the 
City to work with developers to achieve common goals while ultimately strengthening community 
character through good design. 

The Village Master Plan creates an overall vision that places new development within a framework of 
parks, trails, and open space.  It also notes that balancing growth with the preservation of small town 
living will rely on creative design and careful implementation of the plan. 

While the plan as a whole is not being adopted as part of this chapter, the overall guiding principles and 
various recommendations from this plan are referenced in the latter portions of this plan.  The Village 
Master Plan will continue to serve as a guide for new development within the Village Planning Area and 
will be used to help define the development qualities and preferences being sought by the City. 

Upon completion of the Village Master Plan, the City prepared an Alternate Urban Area‐Wide Review 
(AUAR) for the Village Planning Area in order to address the expected cumulative environmental impacts 
associated with the anticipated growth and development within the Village.  This study used the Master 
Plan as the basis for the three alternatives that were studied, each of which assumed increasing 
intensities of residential, commercial, and mixed‐use development.   The AUAR document includes a 
mitigation plan that will need to be addressed as development occurs in the Village.  The Village Planned 
Land Use Map that accompanies this Chapter, Map 3‐5, has been designed to fall within the scope of the 
alternatives that were studied and it is expected that the AUAR will remain a valid environmental review 
as the City works to implement this plan.  

 

Village Planning Area Objectives and Goals 

The land use plan for the Village Planning Area focuses on downtown Lake Elmo, the residential 
neighborhoods south of the downtown, and the farm land immediately surrounding it.  The plan 
addresses future land uses, location of new roads, location of open space corridors, and the measurers 
that could be used to implement the overall vision for the Village Planning Area.  The primary objective 
of this plan is to create a blueprint for new development that builds on existing community strengths 
such as the compact, walkable core, easy access to recreation, and proximity to major transportation 
corridors.  The plan recommends locating new neighborhoods contiguous to the existing core and 
emphasizing walking connections between neighborhoods and the core and within the neighborhoods 
themselves.  

The land use plan will provide space for civic buildings, new retail and service businesses, lifestyle 
housing, and recreational/open spaces that will combine to make a highly desirable, sustainable and 
welcoming center for the City.  The ultimate goal of the plan is to build on the existing strengths of Lake 
Elmo, including a compact assemblage of streets and blocks, a distinct edge, a historic main street and 
good access to parks and open space.  The plan intends to extend these qualities to the newly 

  4



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

developing areas surrounding the existing downtown.   In addition, it proposes connecting the existing 
residential neighborhoods to the south with the village core and new neighborhoods. 

The Village Land Use Plan includes a series of specific goals and objectives for each of the land use 
elements, and establishes the following as the overall goals and objectives for the plan: 

1) Adhere to the Guiding Principles from the Village Master Plan, which are incorporated into this 
land use plan in Table 3D. 

2) Preserve the existing character of the Village while accommodating new housing and businesses 
to comply with the growth projections of the Comprehensive Plan. 

3) Create a walkable, viable community with a distinct center. 

4) Provide space for public and commercial activities around a village green that can serve as a 
focal point for new development. 

5) Create an open space buffer around the new development areas to foster a true village feel. 

6) Plan for development on a “village” scale rather than a “suburban” scale. 

7) Promote traffic calming measures along State Highway 5 to improve auto and pedestrian safety, 
particularly in the vicinity of Lake Elmo Avenue and Lake Elmo Elementary School.  

8) Plan for at least one grade‐separated crossing of Highway 5 for bicycles and pedestrians 

9) Provide for the recreation needs of the new neighborhoods while building on existing facilities 
and accommodating the need for community‐wide recreation facilities. 

10) Create a natural system for storm water management that takes advantage of existing drainage 
patterns. 

11) Plan for a new Village Parkway as a major north/south collector with a new railroad crossing 
approximately midpoint between Lake Elmo Avenue and Manning Ave. 

12) Promote mixed‐use development in the areas close to the Village center.   

 

Village Land Use Plan 

The Village Land Use Plan, Map 35, identifies four primary land use categories within this planning 
area that will accommodate growth, and incorporates an open space overlay category to specify 
which portions of the area will be designated for open space.  The land use categories as applied in 
the Village Planning Area include: 

• LDR – Urban Low Density Residential at 1.5 to 2.5 units per acre 

• MDR – Urban Medium Density Residential at 3.0 to 4.0 units per acre 

• HDR – Urban High Density Residential at 8.0 to 15.0 units per acre 

• VMX – Village Mixed Use with residential densities of 6.0 to 10.0 units per acre 

All of these categories are defined in the previous section of this Chapter.  The Village Open Space 
Overlay category is further described below. 

 

 

  5



Greenbelt Corridor:
500' (Approximate)

Lake Elmo

Sunfish Lake

Sources: Washington County & Metro GIS
2-21-13

5

Village Planned Land Use
Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan 2030

Map 3-5

Planned Land Uses
Public/Park (P)
Rural Area Development (RAD)
Rural Single Family (RS)
Urban Low Density (LDR)
Urban Medium Density (MDR)
Urban High Density (HDR)
Village Mixed Use (VMX)
Commercial (C)

Acreage by Land Use
LDR: 189.3
MDR: 101.4
VMX (greenfield): 64.6
HDR: 6.1
C: 6.4

Open Space Acreage: 591 Acres
Village Open Space Overlay
Village Boundary



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

The Village Land Use Plan was designed to accommodate a range of 900 to 1,100 new housing units with 
the understanding that the target growth for the Village is 934 additional units of housing. Using the 
midpoint of the density range and gross acreages associated with each land use category, the City 
expects that up to 800 of these units will be located within areas guided for LDR and MDR land uses, 
while an additional 200‐300 housing units are expected to be built within the HDR and VMX land use 
categories.   As these numbers represent a calculation based on gross acreages, the actual unit numbers 
are expected to be somewhat lower on a net acreage basis.  

A summary of the purpose and intent of each of the elements of the land use plan is included in the 
following section along with the goals and objectives that are specific to each of these elements.  

Village Center – Mixed Use Area 

In order to achieve the goals and objective of the Village Land Use Plan, a heavy emphasis is placed on 
the planning of the existing Village Center, or downtown area.  The Village Center is comprised of the 
area guided for mixed‐use development.  Building off the existing historic development pattern 
surrounding Lake Elmo Avenue to the south of State Highway 5 is critical to creating a distinctive and 
walkable core.  This core is envisioned to provide an experience that is consistent with a historic 
downtown.  To make this vision a reality, the Village Land Use Plan utilizes mixed‐use zoning (VMX) for 
the Village Center to encourage a variety of uses that will provide opportunities for commerce, retail, 
entertainment, community spaces and housing, all working in synergy to drive activity, energy and 
people to downtown Lake Elmo. 

To successfully achieve the desired vision, the following details surrounding implementation will be 
provided for: 

‐ The Village Center may include a master planned mixed use development with a village green or 
outdoor community gathering space. This development is intended to support downtown Lake 
Elmo by providing an increased sense of place and opportunities for community events. 

‐ The Village Center will utilize mixed‐use zoning, allowing a broad mix of uses that are consistent 
with historical development patterns and reflect traditional downtown areas. 

‐ Additional protections will be afforded to existing homes in terms of providing additional 
screening or landscaping to buffer existing homes from new development in the Village Center. 
In addition, existing homes will not be considered non‐conforming uses within the mixed use 
district. 

‐ Infill development that is sensitive to the existing context, development pattern and 
architecture is encouraged, particularly along Lake Elmo Avenue. 

‐ The City may consider the adoption of a historic district to promote the preservation of historic 
properties and the existing character and architecture of downtown Lake Elmo. 

‐ In order to preserve the historic development pattern of downtown Lake Elmo, the City will 
pursue the adoption of a form‐based or hybrid code in the mixed‐use area of the Village. 

‐ To ensure that parking is adequately addressed downtown, the City will work with business and 
property owners in the Village Center to devise solutions for parking that are agreeable to all 
parties.  Providing additional parking is necessary for business and district vitality.  In addition, 
the provision of parking in the Village Center should be mindful of maintaining a safe and 
pleasing pedestrian experience, which is critical in supporting a successful downtown. 

  7



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

‐  Village Green – Community Space 

In order to draft a plan moving forward to stimulate growth in the Village Center and build off the 
existing downtown along Lake Elmo Avenue, the City may work to pursue a master planned, mixed‐use 
development known as the Village Green that will serve as a community gathering space and 
destination. The intent of this development is to drive more energy and activity to downtown, 
specifically along Lake Elmo Avenue.  The City will take an active role in this process with the following 
aspect of implementation and design in mind: 

‐ The project is to be developed as part of a master plan prepared by the City and/or private 
developers. 

‐ The signature feature of the project shall be a village green or other community gathering space.  
This gathering space is intended to be a destination, hosting community events such as concerts 
and farmers markets. 

‐ The project is intended to include mixed‐use development surrounding the community space, 
with residential development incorporated into retail, office and service uses.  

‐ The opportunity to incorporate public facilities into the development may arise to serve as an 
additional anchor to the project area. 

‐ Development in the Village Green will most likely include: 1) direct access and visibility from 
Lake Elmo Avenue, 2) access and visibility from the new village collector road, 3) connections to 
the Old Village, and 4) opportunities to create pedestrian connections to areas of new 
residential development. 

‐ The configuration of HWY‐5 and the future Village collector road system, or parkway, will 
provide an excellent opportunity for additional anchor‐type development along State Highway 5 
(e.g. community center, health care facility, retail, etc.) that will drive additional users to 
support downtown Lake Elmo. 

‐ Public Spaces 

The City anticipates that additional growth in the Village may provide opportunities to add new or 
improve existing public facilities and amenities.  Planning for additional public facilities or improvements 
will be done in a manner that is consistent with the goals of the Village Land Use Plan.  More specifically, 
public facilities and amenities shall be provided in a user‐friendly way that promotes accessibility and 
safety for all Lake Elmo residents.   

‐ City Hall will continue to serve as a key public building within the mixed‐use development area.  
Opportunities for the expansion and/or relocation of City Hall will be considered either as part 
of the Village Green or in another prominent location within the Village Center.  

‐ The Lake Elmo City Library and Fire Station #1 are presently located in the Village Center.  Any 
significant downtown master planning shall take these facilities into account.  The library in 
particular should be seen as an opportunity to drive more residents and visitors to the 
downtown area, stimulating local businesses in the Village Center. 

‐ Other public uses within the mixed use development area are encouraged, including 
recreational facilities, the downtown post office, and others, as long as they are consistent with 
the character and function of a traditional downtown. 

‐ The Lake Elmo Parks Commission will play an integral role in planning for recreational facilities in 
the Village and ensuring that they are accessible to the surrounding residential areas.  

  8



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

‐ Commercial Areas 

Lake Elmo Avenue has traditionally functioned as the commercial center for the City, and the Land Use 
Plan strives to maintain the Village as a viable and attractive place to do business, while providing 
opportunities for new development to occur in appropriate locations.  The key strategy to accomplish 
this objective is the reclassification of the existing commercial core and certain portions of the 
surrounding land to the VMX – Village Mixed Use district.  This district will allow a wide range of 
commercial activities and is intended to provide an area for compact, mixed use development made 
mutually compatible through a combination of careful planning and urban design and coordinated 
public and private investment.  When planning for such a variety of commercial uses, different 
performance standards may be incorporated to accommodate both auto‐oriented and pedestrian‐
oriented uses so that these different uses are able to function well in proximity to one another.  As long 
as these uses are implemented in a thoughtful manner, the mixture of land uses within the district will 
establish the level of vitality and intensity needed to support retail and service uses in downtown Lake 
Elmo.   

Preserving and enhancing the character of the existing main street along Lake Elmo Avenue is another 
key strategy that will help further reinforce this area as the heart of the community.  Lake Elmo Avenue, 
at present, does not have a unified streetscape and is missing key elements that would improve 
workability throughout the corridor.  The City intends to work with Washington County and the 
Minnesota Department of Transportation to incorporate streetscape improvements with future road 
reconstruction projects.  Specific recommendations are included in the transportation section below. 

Opportunities for expansion of commercial activity will be limited to the mixed‐use areas within the 
Village Center, particularly areas adjacent to the existing core and along major collector roads (Lake 
Elmo Avenue and State Highway 5).  New commercial development will adhere to strict standards 
related to form and design in order to ensure computability with surrounding land uses and to maintain 
a sense of place within the Village Planning Area. 

A small area of commercial development outside of the mixed use development area is planned at the 
intersection of State Highway 5 and Manning Avenue.  The appropriate zoning for this area will be 
convenience commercial in order to provide for smaller scale commercial development or an attractive 
neighborhood shopping center that is compatible with surrounding residential development. 

Other objectives for the commercial components of the Village Planning area include the following: 

‐ Mixed use buildings are encouraged as the primary building type throughout the mixed use 
areas.  Commercial uses should be located on ground floor levels and facing the street where 
practical. 

‐ New commercial development along State Highway 5 should be oriented in a manner that keeps 
the majority of parking to the side or rear of buildings in order to promote a main street feel for 
this road segment. 

‐ Uses within the Village Center that primarily cater to automobiles will be permissible through 
careful site design and the incorporation of pedestrian‐oriented design elements. 

‐ Business activity should be focused on the key roadway segments within the mixed use 
development area, and in particular, along the traditional downtown core along Lake Elmo 
Avenue. 

  9



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Residential Development 

Residential development as the primary land use will occur within those areas designated for LDR, MDR, 
and HDR development with the Village Planning Area.  Residential uses will also be allowed within the 
mixed‐use development (VMX) areas either as the primary land use or as part of a mixed‐use 
development project.  The existing residential neighborhoods within the Village Planning Area will 
guided either as RS – Rural Single Family or as VMX – Village Mixed‐Use with the intent of classifying all 
existing single family residential homes as permitted uses.  

The Village Master Plan includes a series of recommendations for housing types, with key provisions 
that encourage the construction of “life‐cycle housing” (a mix of housing types, styles, locations and 
prices that will offer both opportunity and choice for a range of potential buyers and renters) and that 
also promotes a balanced transportation system that does not favor one mode of transportation (i.e. 
cars, bicycles, and pedestrians) over another.  The descriptions for these housing types are adopted by 
reference as part of this chapter, and are consistent with the Land Use Plan that calls for denser 
residential development as one moves closer to the center of the Village Planning Area. 

The City has adopted zoning districts that correlate with the planned LDR, MDR, and HDR land uses, 
which generally relate to the Master Plan categories as follows: 

  LDR: Large Lot Single Family, Medium Lot Single Family, Small Lot Single Family 

  MDR: Small Lot Single Family, Twin Home, Townhouse, Apartment/Condominium 

  HDR: Apartment/Condominium, Housing Above Retail 

These categories should be used as a general guide for the types of housing that may be built within the 
Village Planning Area.  The densities depicted in the Land Use Plan will take precedence over any such 
figures used in the Master Plan. 

The zoning that correlates to the various residential land uses will be designed to allow for smaller lots 
and higher densities than allowed under each land use category with the expectation that residential 
subdivisions will incorporate open space into developments.  The use of these open space areas may 
include: storm water infiltration, trails, natural or engineered watercourses, natural areas, private or 
public parkland, and other similar purposes.  No development will be allowed that exceeds the density 
levels specified in the Comprehensive Plan, and the median of the density range will be used as a target 
for planning purposes. 

The areas depicted on the Land Use Plan as open space may not be used to calculate residential 
densities; however, any internal open space, other than City park land, will not be deducted from these 
calculations. 

Other objectives for residential development in the Village include the following: 

‐ It is important to foster connections between the residential areas in the Village, 
maintaining some continuity of character between residential areas as opposed to many 
distinct and disconnected neighborhoods. 

‐ In terms of housing, the City supports a variety of housing types and price points that 
are inclusive to all generations. 

‐ While not required, residential design that incorporates environmental considerations, 
such as energy efficiency and solar orientation, is encouraged. 

  10



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Greenbelt /Open Space 

When evaluating the context of the existing land uses and development types surrounding the Village, 
one cannot overlook the significant number of open space preservation (OP) developments in Lake 
Elmo.   These open space developments have had a significant role in shaping Lake Elmo’s character and 
identity; an identity that is unique in the Twin Cities Metropolitan Area.  In order to preserve the 
elements that have made Lake Elmo and specifically the Village unique, it is important to plan for 
sewered development in a manner that is reflective of the community’s existing character.  For that 
reason, all of the previous planning efforts within the Village have included significant amounts of open 
space.  Building off of the vision created in the Village Master Plan, the current Land Use Plan also 
utilizes open space in a strategic way to balance future growth and existing conditions within the Village.  
Ultimately, the open space included in the Village will serve as a critical amenity that ensures that the 
existing character of the heart of the community is preserved to the best extent possible.   

The future open space areas in the Village, as determined by the Village Open Space Plan, Map 3‐6, will 
be consistent with one of the three following open space types, all offering different opportunities and 
purposes: 

1. Natural Resource Preservation Areas.  Natural Resource Preservation Areas are natural areas 
considered to be of high environmental and aesthetic value.  Such areas in the Village include 
but are not limited to the areas adjacent to Sunfish Lake and Reid Park.  These areas are 
considered to be of high environmental value due to the large stands of mature trees, steep 
slopes, wetlands, natural amenities, and the other ecologically sensitive features that are 
located in these areas.  The Natural Resource Preservation Area may include uses such as 
passive recreation, trails, natural areas, and other activities or uses that are consistent with 
outdoor recreation. 

2. Rural Preservation Areas.  Rural Preservation Areas are areas within the Village historically 
utilized for agricultural purposes.  Agriculture remains an integral part of the community’s 
history and identity.  Providing for open spaces dedicated to agricultural uses in the Village is 
critical for maintaining the existing character of the Village.  Uses within the Rural Preservation 
Areas include active farming, passive recreation, trails, public gathering spaces, natural areas, 
natural water courses and other amenities that are consistent with agricultural use or character. 

3. Greenbelt Corridors. Greenbelt Corridors run along the perimeter of proposed development 
and serve as transitional areas between future sewered growth within the Village and existing 
rural development.  The corridor is intended to range out to approximately 500 feet in width.  
However, the stipulated buffer may be reduced if the design of the development includes the 
following: (1) a design that is mindful of the landscape features of the site, providing enhanced 
environmental benefit, (2) a design that is consistent with overall goals for the Village Land Use 
Plan, and (3) a design that is meets the requirements of the underlying land use category of the 
parcel.  At a minimum, the corridor should not be less than 250 feet in width, as measured from 
the existing Village Boundary or the area guided for commercial use in the northeastern portion 
of the Village, for the purpose of maintaining an effective rural‐urban transition.  Not only will 
this provide a significant physical and visual amenity, but it will also encourage more residential 
development closer to the Village Center.  Uses within the Greenbelt Corridor may include trails, 
passive recreation, public gathering spaces, natural areas, storm water management systems, 
natural water courses, small‐scale or community oriented agricultural activities and other 
amenities intended for aesthetic enjoyment. 

 

  11



Lak
e

Elm
o

Sunfish Lake

Lak
e

Elm
o

Sunfish
 Lake

Op
en

 Sp
ace

 Ca
teg

ory
Gre

en
be

lt C
orr

ido
r (5

00
')

Na
tur

al R
eso

urc
e P

res
erv

ati
on

 Ar
ea

Ru
ral

 Pr
ese

rva
tio

n A
rea

Sou
rce

: W
ash

ing
ton

 Co
un

ty 
an

d M
etr

o G
IS

2-1
4-1

3

Vi
lla

ge
 O

pe
n S

pa
ce 

Pla
n

Lak
e E

lm
o C

om
pre

hen
siv

e P
lan

 20
30

Op
en

 Sp
ace

 - D
efi

ne
d

Op
en

 Sp
ace

 - G
en

era
l

Ma
p 3

-6



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

These open space types will comprise the Village Open Space Overlay, as detailed in the Village Open 
Space Plan (Map 3‐6) and Village Land Use Plan (Map 3‐5).  The details surrounding the implementation 
of the Village Open Space Plan and the associated land use implications are further discussed in the 
section on implementation.   

Parks and Trails 

The City has adopted a Parks and Trails Plan, Chapters IX and X of this Comprehensive Plan, which will be 
used as a guide for locating new parks and trails associated with development within the Village 
Planning Area.  Other specific objectives that are specific to the Village concerning parks and trails 
include the following:  

‐ Construction of a new trail connection between the northeastern portion of the Lake Elmo 
Regional Park Reserve and the Village.  This proposed trail connection would primarily follow 
existing road right‐of‐way and serve as a new off‐road entrance into the Park Reserve. 

 

‐ Utilizing 36th Street as a key pedestrian connection between the existing commercial areas along 
Lake Elmo Avenue and future development in the Village Center, or mixed‐use area. 

‐ Development of a grade separated trail either over or under State Highway 5 (Stillwater 
Boulevard) in order to promote a safe pedestrian crossing between the northern and southern 
portions of the Village Planning Area.  

‐ Construction of a multi‐use trail along Lake Elmo Avenue that is separated from vehicular traffic 
and that will serve as the primary trail connection to the I‐94 corridor.  Due to constraints 
associated with the available right‐of‐way and other limitation associated with its potential 
location next to Lake Elmo, this trail should be given special consideration as part of any future 
improvements to Lake Elmo Avenue. 

‐ Expansion of Reid Park into adjacent prime natural areas and other property to the east of Reid 
Park that is not well‐suited for residential development.  Future trails will be encouraged to 
connect to Reid Park with the surrounding residential neighborhoods. 

‐ Development of a larger regional recreational facility to the east of the Village Center adjacent 
to the railroad right‐of‐way.  This facility could serve as a natural buffer between the rail line and 
new residential development with the Village Planning Area. 

‐ The establishment of trail connections between the new and existing neighborhoods located 
with the Village Planning Area.  Sidewalks will be required for all new developments; however, 
the City will consider trails as a substitute for sidewalks in instances where they provide 
connections to other neighborhoods or other public features within the planning area. 

‐ The City may consider the relocation of the existing ball fields located downtown to a new 
regional recreation facility in the Village to allow for redevelopment opportunities within the 
Village Center. 

Transportation 

The existing and planned transportation corridors that circumvent the Village Planning Area will play a 
critical role in shaping the character of the Village.  State Highway 5 and County Highway 17 serve as the 
primary routes into and out of the Village and will continue to see increasing levels of traffic in the 
future.  These routes also represent important connections for the local businesses, many of which rely 

  13



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

on these major transportation routes for visibility and access.  The Village Land Use Plan balances the 
need for access to local businesses with the overall objective of managing and calming the expected 
increases in traffic levels throughout the planning area.  The general transportation goals for the 
planning area include the following: 

State HWY5 (Stillwater Boulevard) 

State Highway 5 is the primary east‐west travel route through the Village. Because of existing high 
speed limits and traffic volumes, it is often a barrier (or at least a significant inconvenience) to 
pedestrian and vehicular movement. Its current design includes ditches, culverts and wide setbacks 
for buildings along the right of way. 

The City is seeking design flexibility with regards to future improvements to this roadway in order to 
reduce speed limits, narrow travel lanes, and to consider other features that will encourage a future 
Main Street that emphasizes pedestrian character, traffic calming and mix of uses described in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  A potential turn‐back of the road to Washington County may help accomplish 
this design flexibility.  

Specific recommendations: 

‐ Roundabouts at the east and west ends of Stillwater Boulevard could slow traffic and mark the 
edges of “downtown”. The redesigned road segment in between will transition from the existing 
rural section to a traditional Main Street design that includes: 

• Curb and gutter with associated storm sewer 

• Wider sidewalks with pedestrian scale amenities (benches, lights, street trees) 

• Narrower lanes perhaps with planted medians and center turn lanes 

• Curb‐side parking if feasible, with additional parking located between or behind Main Street 
buildings 

• Controlled intersections, one at Lake Elmo Avenue and one at 39th Street, will provide safe 
crossings, slow traffic and pull the Village together as one piece, not two halves. 

Stillwater Boulevard and Lake Elmo Avenue with continue to be the primary commercial streets in 
the Village, promoting existing businesses, while encouraging new and expanded opportunities for 
local goods and services. Buildings will be located at (or near) the right of way, with generous 
walkways for pedestrian movement and ‘spill‐out’ activities, such as sidewalk café, coffee shop or 
other uses. 

County HWY17 (Lake Elmo Avenue) 

Lake Elmo Avenue, specifically south of State Highway 5, is recognized as the existing Main Street of 
the Village. The existing conditions include a “T” intersection terminus and jog along State Highway 
5 to connect with Lake Elmo Avenue to the north.  The Comprehensive Plan does not plan for the 
realignment of this roadway segment, and instead recommends improvements along Highway 5 to 
calm traffic and reduce speeds in order to better manage the traffic through these intersections.  

The City will consider modifications to Lake Elmo Avenue in conjunction with the public 
improvements necessary to bring public sanitary sewer service into existing buildings within the 
Village Planning Area.  Future road improvements to Lake Elmo Avenue will include an emphasis on 
the pedestrian environment and incorporate appropriate features including benches, lighting, 
sidewalks, and other elements in order to create an inviting pedestrian environment. 

  14



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Specific recommendations: 

• Consideration of angled parking along Lake Elmo Avenue in order to provide additional 
parking for businesses and to provide additional separation between pedestrians and 
vehicles. 

• Development of a streetscape plan for Lake Elmo Avenue that will identify the design 
features appropriate for Village‐scale development. 

• A controlled intersection, with the potential for a round‐a‐bout at Lake Elmo Avenue will 
help calm traffic and provide opportunities to create a gateway into the Village core. 

Traffic Calming 

Future roadway improvements will incorporate traffic calming measures to help manage the 
projected traffic levels.  The City will pursue both non‐physical and physical measures as described 
in the U.S. Traffic Calming Manual (American Planning Association and the American Society of Civil 
Engineers) in order to help reduce the need for a major roadway expansions (in terms of additional 
traffic lanes) and to promote road improvements that are designed to be consistent with a Village 
scale.  In this context, traffic calming may involve changes in street alignment, installation of barriers 
and other physical measures to reduce traffic speeds and/or cut through volumes in the interest of 
street safety, livability, and other public purposes. 

Traffic calming measures will be considered for all existing streets that are renovated and all new 
streets constructed with the Village Planning Area. 

New Village Parkway 

A new collector road system will provide for a new north/south connection between State Highway 
5 and 30th Street within the Village Planning Area.  This road will serve as the backbone for much of 
the new development with this area and will provide for a connection back to the existing 
downtown via an extension of 36th Street.  The City will work the Union Pacific Railway company to 
create a new crossing of the railroad at approximately the mid‐point between Lake Elmo Avenue 
and Manning Avenue.  The design of this street will employ a parkway style of design and serve as a 
collector road for new development on the east side of the Village Planning Area.  Finally, the 
alignment of the collector road may serve as the boundary between the mixed‐use (VMX) and 
medium density (MDR) land uses. 

Street Design 

The City will work to establish a unified street design for all streets (existing and new) within the 
Village Planning Area.  As a part of this process, the City has initiated an effort to develop a common 
theme for public spaces within the City and will use the results of this theming work as part of future 
streetscape designs.  The theming effort will be critical in creating a unified sense of place in the 
new and old areas of the Village.  

Trail System along HWY5 and CSAH17 

New trails along State Highway 5 and Lake Elmo Avenue will serve as the backbone for a trail system 
that connects the existing and new development within the Village Planning Area and that also 
connects to major destinations such as the Lake Elmo Elementary School, Stillwater Area High 
School, Village Center, Village Green, Lake Elmo Regional Park Reserve, and residential and 
commercial areas along the I‐94 Corridor. 

  15



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

HWY5 Pedestrian Crossings 

As improvements are made to State Highway 5, the ability of pedestrians to safely cross this 
roadway will be given strong consideration as part of the final design.  In addition to crossings at 
controlled intersections, the plan recommends that at least one grade separated crossing be 
incorporated into the sidewalk and trail network. 

 

Phasing Plan 

The Village Planning Area will initially be served by a new sanitary sewer force main that extends from 
the southern boundary of the City to a lift station immediately north of 30th Street and east of Reid Park.  
This force main is scheduled to be constructed by 2014 and will be the starting point for further service 
extensions into the Village Planning Area.  Future sewer extensions can be divided into three distinct 
phasing areas as follows: 

‐ New development areas east of existing residential and commercial development, north of 30th 
Street, and South of State Highway 5; 

‐ New development areas located north of 39th Street and west of Lake Elmo Avenue; and 

‐ Existing homes and businesses within the Village Planning Area served by a new sewer line 
within or parallel to Lake Elmo Avenue. 

Water and other municipal services are already present in those portions of the Village Planning Area 
that are already developed, and these other services will be extended into future developments 
concurrent with sewer service. 

The City intends to be flexible with the timing of each of the project phases described above in order to 
remain responsive to market conditions.  Developments within each phase may occur independently of 
the other phases; however, the City’s ability to efficiently serve a proposed area with municipal services 
(including public sanitary sewer and water) must be addressed by potential developers.  In general, a 
development must either be contiguous as much as possible to areas that have already been served, or 
as an alternative, there must be an approved plan for extending services that also addresses the 
financing related to these improvements.  All projects will be evaluated for continuity with existing 
service areas and whether or not the City can efficiently provide services to a site. 

The Existing and Planned Land Use Table (Table 3‐B) includes the updated projections for land use 
changes based on the Village Land Use Plan.  Urban services will be extended to the Village starting in 
2014.  Following the availability of services, development is expected to occur in the Village throughout 
the planning time period in response to market conditions. 

 

Implementation 

The City of Lake Elmo will use a wide variety of tools to implement the vision for development 
within the Village Planning Area, specifically focusing on the following: 

Zoning 

In order to achieve the desired vision for the Village Center, the City will adopt a mixed‐use zoning 
district.  The purpose of the mixed‐use district is to establish land use and performance standards with 
the intent of enhancing the existing “main‐street” character and aesthetic found within the Old Village. 

  16



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

The mixed‐use district will allow for a variety of use classifications, as long as the various land uses can 
be integrated into the context of a traditional downtown.  These land use classifications include various 
types of residential and commercial uses, as well as multiple land uses integrated into the same site or 
structure, such as multi‐family housing above retail or office space.  With the intent of maintaining a 
pedestrian friendly downtown in the Village Center, different use classifications will be evaluated based 
upon their impact on the built environment.  Use classifications that are more auto‐oriented in nature 
and do not conform to the form found in traditional downtown developments will be subject to special 
performance standards to ensure that these uses can coexist in the downtown setting.  The City may 
also identify the areas of the Village Center that are more conducive to auto‐oriented uses. 

It is important to recognize that there are many existing single family homes located within the Village 
Center.  Similar to many other historic downtown areas, the City values these properties as an integral 
part of the aesthetic and character of the area.  Akin to other historic districts, these properties will have 
the opportunity to transition or redevelop to other land uses.  However, single family residential uses 
will continue in the mixed‐use area as well. In order to provide the necessary protections so that these 
different uses can coexist in the downtown, the mixed‐use (VMX) zoning district shall include 
performance standards aimed at buffering residential properties from other more intensive uses.  In 
addition, existing single family homes in the mixed‐use district will not be given non‐conforming status.  
These properties may continue to be used in a manner that is consistent with their existing zoning 
classification.   

Finally, the City may consider drafting performance standards specific to the LDR and MDR zoning 
districts in the Village Planning Area.  These standards would be informed by the objectives and goals of 
the Village Planning Area, translating the vision towards implementation.  To achieve the desired vision 
for the Village, it is important to integrate performance standards that are consistent with the vision and 
can be implemented into the built environment.   

FormBased Zoning 

In addition to standard zoning, the City will pursue the adoption of a form‐based code, or hybrid code, in 
the Village Center or mixed‐use area.  The purpose of this code is to more effectively regulate the form 
and street pattern in the Village Center, providing more concrete guidance for the downtown.  At a base 
level, this form‐based code will be aimed at extending the traditional main street development pattern 
that currently exists in downtown Lake Elmo to the south of HWY‐5.  The City views the continuation of 
this development pattern as crucial to establishing downtown Lake Elmo as a destination, evoking a 
unique and inspiring sense of place.  As part of the form‐based code, the City will consider different 
standards for pedestrian‐oriented uses and automobile‐oriented uses, possibly resulting in two 
transects within the mixed‐use area.  The ultimate goal for the Village Center is to create a pedestrian‐
friendly district that provides excellent opportunities to live, work and play.  The form‐based or hybrid 
code may be critical in making the downtown district a success. 

Design Standards 

Considering the fact that it is difficult to transform the built environment once it has already been 
established, it is important to incorporate quality design elements from the onset.  As a result, it is 
important to provide guidance or standards related to site and building design as the City proceeds with 
growth and development.  To ensure that the newly developed areas of Lake Elmo are of a high quality 
in both form and function, the City will pursue the adoption of design guidelines or standards.  These 
standards will be applicable to the higher intensity uses in the community.  More specifically, design 
guidelines or standards will be established for high‐density residential, commercial, business park and 

  17



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

mixed‐use development in Lake Elmo.  These higher intensity uses will have a larger impact on the built 
environment and public spaces of the community. Creating a set of uniform guidelines ensures that 
everyone is playing by the same rules, thereby protecting the property values of all who invest in the 
community. In addition to guidelines aimed at site and building design, the design standards may 
encourage other guidelines related to environmentally sensitive design or site specific considerations, 
such as acoustical standards near the Lake Elmo Airport.    These considerations will be offered as 
guidance as opposed to strict standards.  Overall, ensuring high quality site and building design in the 
newly developed areas is important in ensuring its success over the long term. 

Greenbelt/Open Space 

The provision of open space is a critical component of fulfilling the vision of the Village Land Use Plan.  
Equally important is the method of implementation.  If the implementation of the Village Open Space 
Plan is ineffective, than the vision for the Village may not be realized. The following section provides an 
overview of the details of implementation for the Village Open Space Plan.   

In terms of how the Village Open Space Plan is implemented on the ground, the land that is guided for 
open space is designated by the Village Open Space Overlay on the Village Planned Land Use map, Map 
3‐5.  While the different types of open space in the Village serve different purposes or have different 
physical characteristics, the implications of the open space overlay on the land itself remain uniform.  
The distinction in how the open space overlay affects land in the Village rests in the base land use 
category for each parcel.  

For all parcels that are designated with rural land use categories (RAD and RS), the open space overlay 
does not impact the use of the property.  In other words, lands that are guided and zoned for rural use 
may function normally under the same rural zoning districts as before the inclusion of the open space 
overlay.  For example, parcels that are within Rural Preservation or Natural Preservation Areas will 
maintain their Agricultural, Rural Residential or Rural Single Family zoning designation.  The regulations 
of these zoning districts will remain the same regardless of the Village Open Space Overlay.  

For all parcels that are designated with urban land use categories (LDR, MDR, HDR, VMX and C), the 
open space overlay shall act as a zoning or subdivision restriction.  Through restrictions via zoning or 
the subdivision process, the City will have multiple tools to provide for the open space areas in the 
urban districts in the Village.  For example, the City can utilize zoning to enforce various setbacks from 
the existing Village boundary.  Another option would be to dedicate outlots in the open space areas 
through the subdivision process.  As long as the end result is achieved, the City would like to take a 
flexible approach so that the private market can select the best solution for achieving the intent of the 
Village Open Space Plan. 

After the open space areas have been established, it is important to pursue strategies that will provide 
for the long‐term preservation of these areas.  To accomplish preservation, the City will either pursue 
conservation easements with the MN Land Trust or other partners, or investigate the acquisition of land 
that is determined to be a significant natural asset to the community.  Through a combination of both 
strategies, the Village Open Space Plan is more likely to succeed. 

Conservation Easements:  In working to pursue conservation in the Village, finding the funding 
mechanisms needed to create and maintain the easement will remain the most important project 
related to future open space work. With the foundation of the Village Open Space Plan in place, the City 
will investigate grants and other funding mechanisms, such as the Metro Greenways Program and 
Legacy Funds, to provide for conservation.  To achieve positive results, finding willing private and public 
partners will be critical.  In addition, the City may be willing to work with private property owners in the 

  18



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Village who wish to pursue conservation easements on their property.  Finally, to make the conservation 
program as cost‐effective as possible, the City will identify the areas of open space that are of the 
highest priority for conservation.  Prioritizing areas for preservation will allow for an incremental 
approach to obtaining conservation easements.   

Acquisition:  Another strategy that may be pursued is the outright acquisition of property that is 
deemed to be a significant environmental or ecological asset.  If the City were to pursue this strategy, 
the land acquired would most likely be incorporated into parks or trails planning for the community.  In 
other words, the land would most likely have some form of recreational component.  For example, the 
area to the east of Reid Park could be seen as an opportunity to acquire environmentally sensitive lands 
that could be incorporated into recreation.  In addition, the City may wish to pursue the expansion of 
trails around Sunfish Lake to tie into Sunfish Lake Park.  These potential projects are some examples 
where acquisition may be in the best interest of the City. 

Overall, the work of maintaining the Village Open Space Plan does not stop with the establishment of 
the Village Open Space Overlay.  If the open space is to remain a key element of plans for the Village, the 
City will have to pursue strategies to incrementally preserve these open space areas.  In that respect, 
the City can play a significant role in supporting open space amenities in the Village for decades to 
come.      

Parks and Trails 

One consistent theme of the many planning efforts focused on the Village that has continued to 
resonate is the need to provide access to recreational opportunities within proximity to the areas guided 
for growth.  Lake Elmo, and more specifically the Village, has the unique fortune of having access to 
some of the best parks in the Metropolitan Area.  As development occurs, fostering connections and 
access to these parks and open space will be an important part of ensuring an amenity rich residential 
experience within the Village and community as a whole.  For that reason, the City will work to pursue 
the following projects related to parks and trails:  

‐ The City will work with Washington County to develop an “East Side Access” Plan for the Lake 
Elmo Regional Park Reserve. 

‐ The City will work with Washington County to incorporate a separated on‐grade bicycle or multi‐
purpose trail along Lake Elmo Avenue when this corridor is reconstructed. 

‐ The City will work with the Lake Elmo Parks Commission to plan for trail connection between the 
Village and any access points that become available to the Lake Elmo Regional Park Reserve. 

‐ The City will work with the Lake Elmo Parks Commission to site a new regional recreation facility 
to the east of the Village Center, or mixed‐use area. 

‐ As new residential subdivisions in the Village are proposed, the City will require land dedication 
for the purpose of incorporating neighborhood or pocket parks within the new subdivisions. 

‐ The City will consider using parkland dedication as a tool to construct an off‐road/multi‐purpose 
trail system within the Greenbelt Corridors and other open space areas surrounding the Village. 

‐ To expand an existing asset of significant natural value, the City may investigate the acquisition 
of land around Reid Park to expand the park into ecologically sensitive areas. 

‐ The City will remain open to opportunities to secure rights for a trail connection around Sunfish 
Lake. 

  19



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Transportation 

To provide for a safe and effective transportation system in the Village, the City will utilize a number of 
strategies to maintain and improve new and existing facilities.  More specifically, the City will consider 
the following strategies of implementation in regards to transportation: 

‐ Transportation related maintenance and improvements led by the City will be 
incorporated into the City’s 5‐year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Projects will be 
prioritized according to need. 

‐ The City will investigate the use of State Aid Funds for collector road systems in the 
Village.  These funds are critical in the maintenance of more heavily traveled corridors. 

‐ The City will work with the State and Washington County on future reconstruction 
projects, including State Highway 5, Lake Elmo Avenue (CSAH‐17) and Manning Avenue 
(CSAH‐15). 

‐ The City will continue to advocate for safety improvements to State Highway 5, 
especially the area adjacent to Lake Elmo Elementary School and Lake Elmo Avenue.  To 
improve travel along this corridor, the City will work with Mn/DOT and Washington 
County to explore many different strategies to enhance automobile and pedestrian 
safety.  These strategies may include traffic calming measures, at‐grade crossings, 
recreation trails, roundabouts and signalized intersections, among others.    

‐ The City will continue to be active in any plans or discussions by Washington County and 
the State regarding the turnback of State Highway 5.  The potential turnback of State 
Highway 5 would have large impact on the future of the roadway.  Therefore, the City 
should continue to play a prominent role in those discussions. 

‐ The City will investigate the use of Tax Increment Financing (TIF) as a mechanism to 
support various streetscape improvements in downtown Lake Elmo. 

‐ The City will partner with private developers on various street improvement projects, 
such as the Village parkway, related to the growth of the Village.  These improvements 
present opportunities to improve connectivity in the Village.  More specifically, the City 
will look at the possibility of incorporating trails into various street improvements.   

Public Services 

To provide for a significant amount of growth in the Village, the Village Planning Area will have to be 
served with the appropriate urban services.  These services include water, sanitary sewer and storm 
sewer.   While water is already currently available, the extension of sanitary sewer from the I‐94 
Corridor up Lake Elmo Avenue (CSAH‐17) is required to support future growth in the Village.  The 
extension of sanitary sewer to the Village will include the installation of a force main sewer to a lift 
station to the east of Reid Park along 30th Street.  From this lift station, two gravity sewer systems will be 
able to serve the Village Planning Area.  One of these gravity systems will serve the western portion of 
the Village, including the existing properties within the Old Village.  The other gravity system will serve 
the eastern portion of the Village, where there are more opportunities for greenfield development. 

To designate the lands guided for urban services, the City is required to adopt a Municipal Urban Service 
Area (MUSA), or boundary that designates parcels for the provision of sanitary sewer service.  The 

  20



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

current MUSA boundary for the Village Planning Area is the Village boundary itself.  However, in order to 
include other properties adjacent to the Village that can be efficiently served by sanitary sewer, the City 
will amend its MUSA boundary in the Village.  The MUSA amendment is found in Map 3‐7.  Many of the 
properties that will be added to the MUSA can be efficiently served by sanitary sewer given the close 
proximity to the urban service area.  In addition, many of these properties should be connected to 
sanitary sewer to replace aging and non‐compliant individual sewage treatment systems or septic 
systems.  These connections should provide an environmental benefit to Lake Elmo and the Village.   

In regards to storm water management in the Village, it will be the responsibility of the private 
landowners to devise management systems that meet the Valley Branch Watershed District and the 
City’s standards for storm water.  Considering that the Village experiences significant storm water runoff 
events, it will be critical for landowners seeking to develop their land to take a proactive approach to 
storm water management.  These efforts may be informed by the City’s Surface Water Management 
Plan, Chapter V of the Comprehensive Plan.  Landowners are encouraged to work with the City to arrive 
at the best solutions for storm water management in the Village.  In addition, land owners may want to 
take advantage of the resources of the Washington County Conservation District, who offer assistance in 
devising rain garden systems to support on‐site infiltration of storm water.   

   

  21



Sources: Washington County & Metro GIS
2-14-135

Village MUSA Amendment
Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan 2030

Map 3-7

Village MUSA - Proposed
Village MUSA - Existing



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Table 3-D 
Village Development Guiding Principles 

 

PRINCIPLE  EXAMPLE

Principle #1 

Evoke a sense of place . . . 

Build on existing assets to preserve the small town, 
rural character of Lake Elmo, maintaining the Old 
Village as the heart of the city. 

For example: the words ‘small-town America’ still bring forth 
almost iconic images of ‘place,’; images that represent a way 
of life steeped in civic pride, knowing your neighbor and 
celebrating tradition. The Master Plan seeks to build on this 
idea, not detract from it. 

Principle #2 

Balance natural and built systems . . . 

Integrate development within a green framework 
of parks, trails and the open space greenbelt. 

For example: the Master Plan is based on the inseparable 
relationship between various systems working together to 
create the ‘whole-cloth’ of community. The idea of a village 
within a park is an attainable vision . . . with new 
development, infrastructure improvements and other plan 
components carefully conceived and constructed as if to 
appear part of the original settlement. 

Principle #3 

Broaden the mix of local goods and services . . . 

Support existing, and encourage new opportunities 
for�retail shops, restaurants, office, civic and 
institutional uses, particularly along Lake Elmo 
Avenue and the proposed Route 5 Main Street. 

For example: having a variety of visible, inviting, high quality 
purveyors nearby that meet the daily needs of Lake Elmo 
residents is a hallmark of small town life. Rather than 
displacement, the Master Plan seeks to enhance the climate for 
commercial development (including existing businesses), 
while creating an active Main Street and signature destination 
centerpiece for the Village. 

Principle #4 

Provide a variety of housing choices . . . 

Make life-cycle housing a top priority, specifically 
targeting a growing and increasingly diverse 
population. 

 

For example: some existing residents would like to live�in 
Lake Elmo long after they’ve left the family homestead; 
children born and raised in the area would like to find ‘first- 
time-buyer’ housing they can afford; new residents attracted 
to the Village should be able to pick from a mix of high 
quality, reasonably priced options for families, active living, 
low maintenance and special needs housing close to Main 
Street and in nearby neighborhoods. 

Principle #5 

Invest in quality public space . . . 

Construct signature parks and a destination main 
street�as the centerpiece for community events 
with increased recreational opportunities and 
improved amenities throughout the Old Village.  

For example: some of our most memorable and celebrated 
places are our parks . . . from the traditional town square to the 
world renowned Grand Rounds in Minneapolis, the 
contribution of these special places to our quality of life is 
beyond measure. The Master Plan seeks to create a network of 
public parks and trails available for active recreational users, 
casual spontaneous visits or simply an element of the Village 
fabric you might pass by as part of your daily routine. 

Principle #6 For example: Lake Elmo seems to have sort of a quiet history 
represented by only a few visible reminders of bygone days, 

  23



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

Preserve and enhance natural and cultural 
resources . . . 

Develop strategies to insure long term protection 
of the qualities that make the Old Village unique. 

yet the Master Plan seeks to interpret this cultural legacy in a 
very public expression of meaning and place. And although 
much of what was once natural in the Village Area�is mostly 
gone . . . we still have a responsibility to preserve and protect 
what remains, seek to restore what’s missing and connect with 
regional systems where natural areas still flourish. 

Principle #7 

Improve connectivity . . . 

Provide a balanced network for movement that 
links local neighborhoods and Village Area 
attractions with city-wide and regional systems, 
paying equal attention to cars, bicycles, pedestrians 
and transit. 

For example: the Master Plan is not anti-car . . . but it also 
does not emphasize traffic management and car convenience 
as the primary drivers of Village design. Instead, the Plan 
seeks to create a safe, functional and aesthetically pleasing 
experience for everyone, while encouraging increased 
pedestrian and bicycle trips with a decreased dependency on 
the automobile. 

Principle #8 

Build partnerships . . . 

Leverage investment through public/private 
partnerships including expanded relationships with 
builder/developers, corporate, institutional, county, 
state and national organizations with shared 
interest in specific elements of the plan. 

For example: you can’t do this alone . . . each and every 
component of the Master Plan requires the knowledge and 
active participation of a variety of potential partners. Their 
success helps ensure your success, and a positive, engaging 
and respectful experience should be the outcome for everyone 
doing business with Lake Elmo. 

 

Principle #9 

Foster public safety . . . 

Create a vital and inviting Village center that 
encourages activity throughout the day. 

For example: safe streets, safe parks, safe neighborhoods . . . 
much of the world we live in is ‘self-policing.’ The proposed 
mix and location of uses and amenities intentionally promotes 
casual surveillance (eyes-on-the-street) with easy monitoring 
and access by emergency services when needed. 

Principle #10 

Forward a vision that can be implemented . . . 

Balance economic realities and technical 
constraints with a mandate for quality and 
livability. 

For example: the Master Plan becomes meaningless if it can’t 
be built . . . implementation of the Plan must include 
reasonable cost in a reasonable time frame, with built-in 
flexibility that responds to market shifts, political 
reprioritization, technological advances and potential outside 
influences (oil prices, war, transit). 

Principle #11 

Become a great model . . . 

Encourage other communities to ‘raise the bar’ by 
demonstrating low impact development, best 
practices and sustainability. 

For example: there is a growing responsibility and broader 
perspective that suggests that status quo is not an option. The 
Master Plan actively pursues opportunities to not only 
explore, but put into practice, a variety of methods and 
approaches that reduce the negative impacts of development, 
minimize intrusions on our natural systems, conserve energy 
where possible and leave a lasting legacy for others to follow. 

 

Principle #12 For example: there is a wealth of information and real-world 
examples to help small towns like Lake Elmo respond to the 
complex challenges of growth, development, finance, 

  24



Lake Elmo Comprehensive Plan – Draft 2/25/13                                                                                    Chapter III – Village Land Use Plan 

  25

Lead by design . . . 

Creative and innovative thinking locally should 
also be part of the regional, national and global 
collaboration of problem solvers.  

preservation and health. The Master Plan seeks to build from 
this knowledge base, benefit from the experience of others and 
participate in meaningful problem solving for this rapidly 
changing world. 

Principle #13 

Minimize negative impacts . . . 

Promote long term stability and quality of life 
through effective balance of economic, 
environmental and social/cultural priorities.  

For example: the overall health of the Village is intricately 
linked to the health of your local economy, the health and 
attractiveness of the natural and built environment, and the 
social fabric of rural living. Incremental growth and the 
attendant changes that go with it must accommodate both 
existing and future Lake Elmo citizens. 

 

 

 

 

 


	PZ Agenda 2-25-13
	PZ Minutes  2-11-13
	ES PZ Res District Amendments 2-25-13
	154-450 Urban Residential Districts REV 2-25-13
	ES PZ Village CPA; 2-25-13
	Village CPA Draft 2-25-13.pdf
	Village Planning Area – Comprehensive Plan Amendment  
	Introduction
	The approximately 1,300 acres that comprises the Village Planning Area as defined on the Village Land Use Map, Map 3-5, has been the subject of numerous studies and planning efforts extending back for several decades.  The Village Area serves as the heart of the community and provides a direct connection to the City’s past with its historic buildings and small-town character.  As part of the Lake Elmo’s most recent Comprehensive Plan update in 2005, the City decided to accommodate a portion of future sewered development within the Village Planning Area with the direct intent of building upon the existing character of the Village while preserving those aspects that make it unique.
	History of the Village
	Physical Context
	Previous Planning Efforts
	Village Master Plan and Village AUAR

	Village Planning Area Objectives and Goals
	The land use plan for the Village Planning Area focuses on downtown Lake Elmo, the residential neighborhoods south of the downtown, and the farm land immediately surrounding it.  The plan addresses future land uses, location of new roads, location of open space corridors, and the measurers that could be used to implement the overall vision for the Village Planning Area.  The primary objective of this plan is to create a blueprint for new development that builds on existing community strengths such as the compact, walkable core, easy access to recreation, and proximity to major transportation corridors.  The plan recommends locating new neighborhoods contiguous to the existing core and emphasizing walking connections between neighborhoods and the core and within the neighborhoods themselves. 

	Village Land Use Plan
	The Village Land Use Plan, Map 3-5, identifies four primary land use categories within this planning area that will accommodate growth, and incorporates an open space overlay category to specify which portions of the area will be designated for open space.  The land use categories as applied in the Village Planning Area include:
	A summary of the purpose and intent of each of the elements of the land use plan is included in the following section along with the goals and objectives that are specific to each of these elements. 
	Village Center – Mixed Use Area
	-  Village Green – Community Space
	- Public Spaces
	- Commercial Areas

	Residential Development
	Greenbelt /Open Space
	Parks and Trails
	Transportation
	State HWY-5 (Stillwater Boulevard)
	County HWY-17 (Lake Elmo Avenue)
	Traffic Calming
	New Village Parkway
	Street Design
	Trail System along HWY-5 and CSAH-17
	HWY-5 Pedestrian Crossings


	Phasing Plan
	Implementation
	The City of Lake Elmo will use a wide variety of tools to implement the vision for development within the Village Planning Area, specifically focusing on the following:
	Zoning
	Finally, the City may consider drafting performance standards specific to the LDR and MDR zoning districts in the Village Planning Area.  These standards would be informed by the objectives and goals of the Village Planning Area, translating the vision towards implementation.  To achieve the desired vision for the Village, it is important to integrate performance standards that are consistent with the vision and can be implemented into the built environment.  
	Form-Based Zoning
	Design Standards
	Greenbelt/Open Space
	Parks and Trails
	Transportation
	Public Services



